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Addendum #1 

 
Date: November 23, 2016 
 
Request for Proposal: State Designer Selection Board Project 16-08  

Addition of Pavilion at the Governor’s Residence – Saint Paul, MN 
 MN RECS Project Number 02GR0010 
  
  
Subject: Questions and Answers            
  

1. Is there an intent for the pavilion to mimic the existing aesthetics of the main house and 
carriage house? Or, intended to be a separate, contemporary design?  

A.  It will be one of the awarded proposer’s tasks to help determine the appropriate 
aesthetics considerations to include in the Pre-design report. Guideline for Heritage 
Preservation will apply to the project and should be interpreted accordingly.   

2. What functions are planned to be used on a daily basis? For example, are the offices 
intended to be occupied by full-time employees?  

A. As well as meeting spaces, the goal is to have the non-residence functions reassigned 
to the Pavilion and/or Carriage House, including the commercial kitchen, ancillary 
functions, storage, etc.  The residence managers, grounds keeper and chef would also 
office in either the new or remodeled space. There also should be an Interpretive 
Historic component / space devoted to the former First Families and the Irvine 
Family.  Additionally, it has been discussed that the 1006 Society and the GRC 
(Governor’s residence Council) have dedicated space in the building. 

3. Is there an area square footage maximum that the pavilion may be built on the 
garden/yard? 

A. It will be one of the awarded proposer’s tasks to help determine the appropriate 
massing, programming, and Code considerations to include in the Pre-design report.  

4. Is the existing landscape design intended to remain as much as possible? Or, is a 
completely new landscape design intended?  

A. It is anticipated that much of the south site will be disturbed by the construction. It 
will be one of the awarded proposer’s tasks to help determine the appropriate site 
considerations to include in the Pre-design report. 
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5. What documents, including specifications and reports, exist for the original carriage 

house and later alterations? 
 
A. The information is incomplete, but there are original blueprints dated 1911 that 

include Heating Plans, Heating Tunnel Sections. There may be more info on 
microfiche and info from past projects (such as infilling the garage turntable).  We 
also have a survey and documents from the on-going renovation project started in 
2013. 
 

6. The property is included in the National Register of Historic Places and the St. Paul 
Historic Sites Register, as the RFP states. It is also included in the State’s Register of 
Historic Places as it sits within the Historic Hill District. Pursuant to Minnesota Statute 
138.665, the State Historic Preservation Office must be consulted about the project. Has 
this office been contacted yet about this project? What is the status of that communication 
and their initial response about this proposed addition? 
 
A. David Heide had meetings with SHPO and St. Paul HPC about the Pavilion project 

and presented a concept sketch he prepared.  They were open to the idea of the 
building: ‘didn’t say no’. They have also been contacted about past restoration 
projects and have provided input. 
 

7. The RFP lists “Historic Preservation Consultant” as a required member of the team. This 
description is a little vague, as that could include people who are architectural historians 
or preservation architect. Can you clarify which type of specialist you are looking for, or 
what types of tasks this team member would be responsible for? 
 
A. We are looking for relevant experience rather than a title. 

 
8. Are there any pre-existing studies or documents relating to the property that would help 

our team prepare for this effort? 
 
A. Yes. They were not provided as attachments as for the purposes of Pre-Design, we 

may want to have a non-prejudiced look at the project needs and possible solutions. 
The following will be made available to the awarded proposing firm: The Garden 
Pavilion Event Center at the Governor’s Residence (a history, concept proposal & 
solutions put out by the Governor’s Residence Council) dated 6/15/15; Facility 
Condition Assessment by VFA, Inc. dated 6/5/11; and a Pre-Design for Minnesota 
Governor’s Residence Preservation, Restoration and Repairs by Miller Dunwiddie  
Architecture dated 6/29/12 (which did not include any Pavilion discussion); Master 
Plan for the Governor’s Residence prepared by MacDonald & Mack Architects, 
dated 5/21/96; The Governor’s Residence Council Architectural and Interiors Review  
and Guidelines, dated 11/07/12 (see Attachment 1).   
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9. It is stated that the budget for the initial contract for predesign services is $70,000 with 

$10,000 for owner associated costs.  Is the $10,000 in addition to the $70,000 or part of 
it? 
 
A. The fee will be negotiated, and may be partially based on project complexity, the 

team makeup, any recommended testing for the Pre-Design effort, and the GRC 
budget available.  
 

10. Is the Governor’s residence considered part of the Capital complex? 
 
A. The Department of Administration’s Plant Management Division[PMD], now named 

Facility Management Division [FMD] does consider this part of the Capitol complex 
for operational and maintenance issues, contractor requirements, etc.  Their website 
is http://mn.gov/admin/government/buildings-grounds/  Note that Executive Security 
will have other requirements. 
 

11. Who are the Authorities Having Jurisdiction and what agencies are reviewing this 
project?  
 
A. Verification of all AHJs will be the consultant’s responsibility, but typically after 

submittal of the State of Minnesota Initial Application for Plan Review, authority for 
plan review is usually delegated to the City of St. Paul – who have their own site plan 
review process. They will also likely require a State plumbing review and Department 
of Health review for the commercial kitchen. The GRC (Governor’s Residence 
Council) is funding this project and, by statute, that body is charged with oversight of 
the Property and will be included in Programming and other aspects of the Project as 
appropriate.   

 
12. The transmittal indicates we must attach “Affirmative Action Certificate”.  Is this the 

same as the Equal Pay Certificate”, which isn’t listed on the transmittal? 
 
A. The Affirmative Action Certificate and Equal Pay Certificate are two different forms. 

 
End of Addendum #1 
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